
    

   

Engineering Memo 

To Auckland Council Date 15/10/2024 

From Peter Lowe Job # P23-077 

Ref: Windsor Park Community private plan change – RFI Engineering responses - 2 

 
With reference to the RFI letter dated 4th October, 2024 ref: “Clause 23 further information request – 
Private Plan Change Request by Windsor Park Community and Multisport Hub Incorporated”, please 
note the following points: 
 

1. This is an application for the rezoning of a land area from Open Space – Active Recreation to 
Mixed Housing Urban and is not an actual land use consent application.  

 
2. The rezoning application included a possible development concept plan which was merely an 

indication of what could be developed and was provided for the following reasons:  
 

a. To provide a base for calculating the number of potential dwellings that could be 
provided and hence available wastewater and stormwater capacities, while providing 
potential stormwater mitigation solutions. 

b. Provide a base for assessing access and traffic related matters.  
 

3. Once the rezoning is approved, only at that point will an actual land use consent application 
be made. Such an application will be then accompanied by a specific development proposal 
with a confirmed layout. Actual stormwater mitigation devices and strategies will be 
proposed at that stage for implementation.  

 
4. Our response to date has been to provide a level of confidence that, should the land be 

rezoned, that any future land use application can provide realistic mitigation .  For example;  
 

a. The land use application can explore the use of the playing fields as retention or any 
other options.  In actioning, there will obviously be discussions with Council, Parks and 
Healthy Waters.  

b. Options around treatment, retention, capacity and design.  
 

5. We can also confirm following discussions with the traffic engineer, that the internal road will 
be private and not public.  Therefore private stormwater treatment and mitigation devices 
are suggested as possible stormwater options.  

 
Noting the above, we have also responded to the further questions below, please find attached the 
following responses for engineering and stormwater queries as follows: 
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The applicant has consulted with Iwi groups, and to date there have been no responses received form 
any of them. Further consultation with Iwi can be undertaken at land use consent stage when a 
specific design is being proposed. No further consultation with Iwi is proposed as this stage. The SMP 
has been updated to state this.  
 

 

 
 
It is confirmed the road would be private, therefore no consultation with Auckland Transport is 
required.  
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Please note this application for re-zoning does not rule out the possibility of using single communal 
stormwater devices. The detail of which would be provided should a land use consent application be 
made. 
 
With this in mind, our responses to date have been to provide a level of confidence that, should the 
land be rezoned, that any future land use application can provide realistic mitigation.   
When a land use application is submitted, actual mitigation devices will be submitted with the 
proposed. There is no point in being specific with the device choices at this stage. 
 

 

 
 
When a land use application is submitted, actual mitigation devices will be submitted with the 
proposed. A recommended option is not given as there is no actual detailed proposal submitted as 
part of a re-zoning application. 
 
Geotech and dam specialists have not been consulted on the dry detention pond for a plan change 
application. Nor would they be needed when the ponding depth would be no more than 0.5m deep. 
 
The 19% impervious area section has been updated to only consider the plan change area at MPD 
(65% impervious) 
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Our responses to date have been to provide a level of confidence that, should the land be rezoned, 
that any future land use application can provide suitable mitigation.   
 
When a land use application is submitted, actual mitigation devices will be proposed. There is no 
point in being specific with the device choices or specific design at this stage. 
 
However, for information, calculated retention volumes for the private roading and parking areas 
could be taken up as detention in accordance with point 2 of E10.6.3.1.1 as the water from these 
areas is non potable and not suitable for onsite reuse and assuming there is no suitable infiltration. 
 
This has been clarified in the SMP section 4.3 Stream Hydrology Stormwater Mitigation. 
 
When an actual land use application is submitted, actual mitigation devices will be submitted with the 
proposal.  
 
This level of detail is not necessary for a re-zoning application. 
 

 
 
The receiving environment section of the SMP has been updated to include the larger environment 
and shows the drainage route from the site to the pond, to the Oteha stream and then eventually to 
the harbour. 
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Following discussions with the traffic engineer, we can confirm that the internal road will be private 
and not public. 
 
11 Iwi Groups were notified on the 30.11.2023 and to date there have been no responses from any of 
the 11 Iwi groups. Further consultation with Iwi should be undertaken at land use consent stage when 
a specific design is established. No further consultation with Iwi is proposed as this stage. The SMP 
has been updated to state this.  
 

 
 
The proposed road will be private taking AT consultation out of the picture. 
 
At the time of a land use consent application, it is expected that any private stormwater mitigation 
and treatment devices will be proposed to be owned and maintained by a resident association. This 
should be specified when the land use consent is applied for. This level of detail is not necessary for a 
re-zoning application. 
 

 
 
The proposed road will be private. 
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The current proposal is for a re-zoning of the land. This application will not have any stormwater 
effects on neighbouring properties.  
 
At the time of a land use consent application, the confirmed proposal of the site should provide 
details on how effects on neighbouring properties are avoided. The plans and calculations to date 
have provided examples of how this could be achieved. 
 
10 year peak flow mitigation is shown that it can be provided through detention tanks. 
 
These are just examples to demonstrate that effects on neighbouring properties can easily be avoided 
should a land use consent application be made. 
 

 

 
 
The current proposal is for a re-zoning of the land. This application will not have any stormwater 
effects on neighbouring properties.  
 
At the time of a land use consent application, the confirmed proposal of the site should provide 
details on how effects on neighbouring properties are avoided. The plans and calculations to date 
have provided examples of how this could be achieved. 
 
100 year peak flow mitigation is shown that it can be provided through constructing a small earth 
bund around the sports fields, creating detention storage. The option of creating a dry detention 
basin on the sports field could provide additional flood storage and further reduce flooding to the 
downstream environment (and taking further pressure of the Ascension Place detention basin). 
 
These are just examples to demonstrate that effects on neighbouring properties can easily be avoided 
should a land use consent application be made. 
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There was no need to update the conclusions as there are no adverse effects on neighbouring 
properties from the 10% or 1% rainfall events. 
 

 
 
 
When a specific development proposal with building locations is confirmed, at that stage realignment 
of stormwater pipes or configuration of the building layout could be examined. It is assumed and land 
use consent application would consider the Auckland Council Stormwater Code of Practice which 
gives advice on avoiding building over large diameter stormwater pipes. 
 
Until this plan is available and a specific development proposal prepared, we cannot comment any 
further apart from stating the build overs should be avoided where possible. 
 
 

 
 
From an engineering perspective it must be noted that the fields will be acting as a dry detention 
basin. This means that the fields will only pond occasionally and only for a short period of time. They 
are designed to provide detention for the 100 year rain event, meaning it will only be activated 
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occasionally (perhaps only once in every 10 years). Adding to this, the sports fields have a network of 
subsoil drains which are designed to drain rapidly whilst still providing peak flow attenuation for the 
100 year rain event. 
 
The performance of these privately owned sports fields and the amount of usage they can provide is 
unlikely to be affected at all, from the proposal. 
 
 
Regards 
 

 
Peter Lowe 

BE (Civil), CPEng 

Landworks Ltd 

 
 








